Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Annual Report
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Company Registration Number: SV177



Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Annual Report
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Contents

Management and Administration

Directors' Report

Manager's Report

Directors' responsibility for the financial stalements
Independent auditors' report

Financial Statements:

« Statement of financial position

- Statement of comprehensive income

+ Statement of changes in equity attributable to founder shares

» Statement of changes in net assets attril to
* Statement of cash flows
* Nates to the financial statements

Further information

Page

L N



Metatron Capital SICAV pic
Management and Adminlstration
For the year ended 30 June 2023

M and A istration

DIRECTORS

REGISTERED OFFICE

COMPANY REGISTRATION
NUMBER

ADMINISTRATOR

LEGAL ADVISOR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

COMPANY SECRETARY

PORTFOLIO MANAGERS

Toméad Martinec

Mark Guillaurnier {Up 1o 2 October 2023)
Petr Posker

Paul Magro

Juanita Bencini (From 2 October 2023)

Quad Central (From 1 January 2023)
Trig L-Esportaturi, Zone 1

Central Business District

Birkirkara CBD 1040

Malta

Vision Exchange Building (Up to 31 December 2022)
Terrilorials Street

Zone 1, Cenfral Business Districl

Birkirkara CBD 1070

Maita

sv177

Apex Fund Services (Malta) Limited
Quad Central

Triq L-Esportaturi, Zone 1

Central Business Districl

Birkirkara CBD 1040

Malta

Camilleri Preziosi

Level 3, Valletta Buildings
South Street

Valletta VLT 1103

Malta

PricewaterhouseCoopers

78 Mill Street

Zone 5, Central Business District, Qormi, CBD 5090
Malla

Apex Regulatory Solutions (Malta) Limited (From 1 January 2023)
Quad Central

Triq L-Esportaturi, Zone 1

Central Business District

Birkirkara CBD 1040

Malta

Alter Domus (Services) Malta Limited (Up to 31 December 2022)
Vision Exchange Building

Temitorials Street

Zone 1, Central Business Dislricl

Birkirkara CBD 1070

Malla

Juraj Podracky
Ales Vavra
Redler Pavol



Melattan Cagial SIOAV ple
Direclors’ Report
For the year andaed 30 June 1023

Diractors' Report
The Directors are pleased to present the eleventh Annual Report of Metatron Capital SICAV plc covering the year ended 30 June 2023.

Principal activities

Metatron Capital SICAV plc (the “Funds” or the “Company”) is a i scheme ished and licensed and regulated by the Malta Financial Services Authority
having Licence Number CIS/177H under Ihe Investment Services Act, 1994 (Chapter 370, Laws of Malla) as a Professional Investor Fund under the laws of Malla, having company
registration number SV 177, with its registered office situated at Quad Central, Triq L-Esportaturi, Zone 1, Central Business District, Birkirkara CBD 1040, Malta. The Funds are self-
managed and the overall investment slrategy and parameters for the current Funds are determined by the Company's Investment Committee during regular meetings held
periodically in Malta

During the financial year under review, the ition of the I Ci i and the ition of the Board of Directors has not changed. The Direclors of the Company
who held office during the year under review are listed on page 2.

The implementation of the Company'’s inveslment strategy and day- to-day managemenl of the Funds has been asslgned by the Board in terms of a written agreement to the
authorised Portiolic Managers. The usual risk p g the proper iloring of risks and itivities are performed on a daily basis.

Review of busi and ial position

The Company had three funds as of 30 June 2023 — namely Metatron Global Macro Fund (MGMF), Metatron Short Equity Fund (formerly known as Melatron Long-Shert Equity
Fund) (MSE) and Melatron Long-Term Equity Fund (MLTE)

During the twelve months under review, the Company has ,' d from its operations a net ii in assets attril lor participali ing to
€13553 916 Net assels i to ble particij as at 30 June 2023 thus reached a total of €190,179,324, The total net assets attributable to
i d from €1 77.6 million in 2022 to €190 2 million in 2023. This increase was mainly due to the positive performance of MLTE during
the period as well as the significant inflows of new capital sourced from a number of investors to MLTE

On lhe inistralive side, the ing of iti support lo Portfolio Managers and internal development of tools continued covering a range of aclivilies, fine-tuning
current operati tools and supporting and il g the i it processes, Directors have also done the review of Depositary Sparkasse Bank Malla as its key services
provider with the special focus on safekeeping and segregation of assets. The bank has prepared a special memo in this regard which was reviewed by the Metatron legal counse!

The Company reglslered connnued interest from High Net Worth Indlwduals both directly but also through a number of distril Pi i iviti ure belng
focused on wilh Portfolio and directars will, however, conlinue ping Lheir indivi p ional efforts Regil , the core of the
distribution will stay in the Czech Republic and Slovakia.

The Company has received the following derogations from MFSA:

i} Internal Audit Derogation — Granled on 11 May 2022 and expires on 30 June 2023; and
i) Remuneration Derogation — Granted on 20 April 2023 and expires on 6 May 2025

List of principal risks and uncertainties

The managers consider the following key risks to its business:

Loss of key personnel. Given the current size of its operations, the Company does not have a substitute for every key staff member. However, the key portfolio managers
are also lhe owners of the Company so the risk of loss of ffecting the per is limited

by a major il Ci alion risk affects mainly Metatron Global Macro Fund, but would not affect the other funds as the investor base is diversified

Loss of a major distributor. At the moment, the Company has just one key external distributor. Its departure could negatively affecl lhe assets under management. The
Directors are trying lo sign contracls with more distributors in an attempt lo diversify or reduce dependency-

Major market downtum. All sub-funds of the Company have at least one market-neutral share-class which is being hedged against equity bela risk, However, this hedging
might not be perfect or added at lhe right lime. The most vulnerable 1o this risk is Melatron Long-Term Equity Fund

rate risk. gl b-funds invest into ies other than base currency of a particular share class, exchange rate fluctualions related to such exposures
are being hedged, mainly those in CZK and USD. The exch rate exp are th limited. The most vulnerable to this risk is Metatron Global Macro Fund,

Emerging market risk. Although none of the funds specifically target emerging markels, some assels of the sub-funds can be mvesled in emerging markets, particularly
Easlem and Central Europe. These are mainly fixed-income investments. The risk is well i and d thanks to of these markels by the
portfolic managers.

Interest rate risk. The Company monitors Lhe interest rate risks very closely and manages them actively. However, given the exposure to fixed interest instruments, a
sudden increase in interest rates can affect the value of the portfolio negatively. The most vulnerable to (his risk is Melatron Global Macro Fund.

Credit risk. Some of the sub-funds might be expesed to i i with below-grade rating or no credit rating at all. However, this risk is actively monitored. It
is not a part of investment policy of any sub-fund lo derive a malerial part of its return from credit exposure

Risk from investing into OTC derivatives. The Company invests into OTC derivatives only on a limited basis and in cases where investment strategy cannol be
ialized through i inlo exch; di

The Directors continue lo identify and monitor the key risks and take steps to mitigate them and their potential negalive impact



Metatron Capital SICAV plc
Direclors' Repon
For the year encded 30 June 2023

Directors' Report (continued)

Going concem slatement

As at 30 June 2023, Ihe financial position of the Company was very strong with total equity attributable to founder sharehalders of €682,494 relative 1o lotal assels attributable to
founder shareholders of €1,030,225 whilst the tolal assets and net assefs aftributable to shareholders of the investor shares of the sub-funds amounted to €211,851,251 and
€190,179,324 respectively The Company is also exposed to monthly cash redemptions of the Company's shares, However, the Company's listed securities are considered readily

realizable, as the majority of the securities are listed on a stock exchange. In view of the strong capital base, the directors do not foresee any going concem issues in lhe
Toreseonble luture.

Future developments

The main focus of the Company is slill and, indeed, will nlways be to concentrate on perfecting and impi the il in order to continue building a solid track
record. Still, the open, transparent and delailed with i is a key objective boih of the Dweclnrs and 1he Punﬁalw Managers. The delermined effort of the whole
team is aimed at delivering and fulfilling the investment objectives of the Funds 1aking inte consideralion the approp d balance. The has closely watched
the per of the service provi during the ic and their ability to operate remolely withoul compromising the quality and range of service. The various parts of
compliance monitoring programme have also taken into consideration the changed situation under which the fund operales

In the follwing financial year, Company plans the launch of the new sub-fund Metatron Event-Driven Fund in fact, on 18 7.2023, the Directors have received an Authorization Letler
from the MFSA approving the new sub-fund. Company has already secured a seed capital for the new fund, The Directors expect that the strategy of the new sub-fund will further
diversify operations of the Company and its sensitivity lo various market events

In conclusion, the Directors of the Company believe that the positive historical performance of the Funds supported by the recent ical i which have been
adopted by the Company together with its AIFM status, will piace the Funds in a strong position to deliver long-term growth in assets under management

Auditor

Pri oopers have indi their willingness o conlinue in office and a resloution for their appointment will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting

Results and dividends (paid and proposed}

During the twelve months under review, lhe Company has registered from ils operations a nel incresse in assets attri to red bl icipati harehald ing to
€13,553,916, Net assels atlr le to par ing shareholders as at 30 June 2023 lhus reached a total of €190,179,324

The Directors have declared and paid dividend: ing to €1,115,838 to founder, performance and the i harehold: After the reporting period, lhe Directors
proposed dividends amounling to €107,813 1o the prefe Directors are that the strong base will allow substantially larger redistrubution of earnings in the

nexl accounting periods

dard licence itions and v

During the year under review, there were no breaches of the Standard Licence Conditions and no breaches of regulatory requirements

Directors

In accordance wilh Article 223 of the Company’s Articles of Association, all the Directors are due to retire al lhe Company’s forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible
for intend lo offer th lves lor re-electi

Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 October 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

7
]
Magro Petr Pdsker
Director Direbtor




Melatron Capital $ICAV plc
Manager's Report
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Manager's Report

Funds overview and review of performance 201172012

In the fiscal year 2022/2023 the lhree Funds managed under Metatran Capital SICAV plc recorded a mixed seeaoma B‘,E_U%

performance, Metatron Global Macro Fund (“MGMF") has underperformed its benchmark (1Y Euribor + 4% 201302014 | 7.97% BATH

pa) and its NAV per share fell by -6.00%. Melatron Short Equity Fund (“MSEF") dropped by -20.09% 0142016 | aoet 1091% | Z300%
following the ing per in 2022 Long-Term Equity Fund {(“MLTE") showed a double 20152016 T11% T 55 B 1a%
digit positive return of 13,26% as the global equity indices recovered. The historical performance for each - —

fiscal year can be viewed in the table on the righl. For each Fund the comment by portfolio manager is 2018/2017 Saa% 1.57% T7.48%
provided below, followed by NAV chart and a detailed month-by-month performance table. O9TIZONE | 34T -38E% | 1613%

20182018 | -226% -TE6% 9.40%
2MN2020 | -1091% 413% 5.14%
2% 2455 42.13%
a i E
MGMF experienced a difficult fiscal year. The bulk of the losses came in the last quarter stemming from M0 | TN il fanoh
corporale bond investments in several special situations. These bonds suffered default and thus were 20222023 | -500% | -P009% | 1326%
marked down heavily. Further losses were suffered in long Fed funds futures position, During the month of

March there was a barking crisis following which the porticlic manager expected the US Federal Reserve
to cease increasing interesl rates, but this did nol materialise

Metatron Global Macre Fund

Juraj Podracky
Portfolio Manager

Metatraon Global Macro Fund - NAV p.s.

175 4

Metatron Short Equity Fund (formerly known as Metatron Long-Short Equity Fund)

The decision to shift lhe fund's strategy to a short-only approach may seem counterintuitive, but it is a prudenl move. The significant decline in some of the positions that were
shorted underscores the potential of this strategy. Risk management is an inherent part of this strategy and poses its own set of challenges. The recent short posilions opened in
MPW and Hexagon AB are prime examples of this belief. While they may not have yielded immediate results, | am confident thal these positions will prove to be profitable in the
long run. This conviclion slems from a thorough analysis and understanding of market trends and dynamlcs In conclusion, while the shift to a short-only strategy may seem
daunting at first, it holds significant polential for those willing to i the risks and chall d with it

Ales Vavra
Portfolio Manager



Melatron Capital SICAV plc
Manager's Reporl
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Manager's Report (continued)
Funds overview and review of performance (continued)

Metatron Shon Equity-Fund - NAV p.s.
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2022 3,88% -0.79% i -0.19%
2023 -5.771% 0.31% 12.47%

Metatron Long-Term Equity Fund

As a Fund with 100% net long exp , MLTE's per is heavily d with the performance of major world equity indices. The market rally in first half of 2013 drove
positive performance of the fund Durlng the period, however the portfollo manager did not succeed lo outperform the Fund's intemal benchmark (weighted index of 65% S&P 500
and 35% Euro Stoxx 50) because of the lower lunds weigh in M: ient seven (Mi , Apple, Nvidia elc.) stocks, The Fund is not invesled in all the securities making up
the S&P500 index thus making itimpossible to beat the b k when these stocks are performing well and pushing up the overall performance of the Index.

Juraj Podracky
Portfolic Manager

Metatron Long-Term Equity Fund - NAY p.s.
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Matatan Capital SIEAY pie
Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Stalements
Fot the yoar ended 10 June 2023

Directors' Responsibillty for the Financial Statements

The direclors are required by the Maltese Companies Act (Cap 386) to prepare financial slatements which give a true and fair view of ihe state of affairs of the company as at the
end of each reporting period and of the profit or loss for that period

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for:

ensuring lhat Lhe financial statements have been drawn up in d with i Financial Reporti dards as adopted by the EU:
and applying apprapri ing policies;
making i i thai are ble in the cil
ensuring that the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to p that the will continue in business as a going
concern
The dii are also ible for designing, il ing and maintaining inlemal control as the directors ine is y to enable the prep and the fair

presentation of the financial statements thal are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and that comply with he Mallese Companies Act (Cap. 386) They

are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and delection of fraud and other imegularities

Signed on behalf of the Board of Direclors by:

Petr Pdshes
Direttar
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Independent auditor’s report
To the Shareholders of Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Our opinion
In our opinion:

e The financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Metatron Capital
SICAV plc (‘the company’) as at 30 June 2023, and of the company’s financial performance and
cash flowsfortheyearthenendedin accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(‘IFRSs’) as adopted by the EU; and

s The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Maltese
Companies Act (Cap. 386).

Our opinion is consistent with our additional report to the Board of Directors.

‘What we have audited
Metatron Capital SICAV plc’s financial statements, set out on pages 17 to 54, comprise:

e the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2023;
o the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
¢ the statement of changes in equity attributable to founder shares for the year then ended;

o thestatement of changes innet assetsattributable to redeemable participating shareholders for the
year then ended;

e the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

s the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of Metatron Capital SICAV ple

Independence

We are independent of the company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements of the Accountancy Profession
(Code of Ethics for Warrant Holders) Directive issued in terms of the Accountancy Profession Act (Cap. 281)

that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Malta. We have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these Codes.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that we have not provided non-audit services that are
prohibited under Article 18A of the Accountancy Profession Act (Cap. 281).

We did not provide any non-audit services to the company during the year ended 30 June 2023.

Our audit approach
Overview

Materiality

Key audit
matters

Overallmateriality: 1% of net asset value (“NAV”)for the company’s sub-funds.

The cdmpany is a self-managed multi-fund publiclimited liability investment
company with variable share capital which had three segregated sub-funds

during the year ended 30 June 2023, each constituting a patrimony separate
from one another.

The company’s accounting is delegated to the Administrator, Apex Fund Services
(Malta) Limited, which maintains its own accounting records and controls, and
reports to the Investment Committee, Portfolio Managers and the Directors.

We tailored the scope of our audit taking into account the types of investments
held bythe sub-funds, theinvolvement of the third parties referred to above, the

accounting processes and controls and the industry in which the company
operates.

Valuation and existence of financial assets at fair value through profit orlos
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To the Shareholders of Metatron Capital SICAV plc

As part of designing ouraudit, we determined materiality and assessed therisks of material misstatement in
the financial statements. In particular, we considered where the Directors made subjective judgements; for
example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering
future events that areinherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management
override of internal controls, including among other matters consideration of whether there was evidence of
bias that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work toenable us toprovide an opinion on the
financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the company, the accounting processes
and controls, and the industry in which the company operates.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. An audit is designed to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. Misstatements
may arise due to fraud or error. They are considered material if individually or in aggregate, they could

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statements.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality, including
the overall materiality for the financial statements as a whole as set outin the table below. These, together with
qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our auditand the nature, timing and extent of

our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the
financial statements as a whole.

Overall materiality and 1% of net asset value (“NAV”) for the company’s sub-funds.
how we determined it

Rationale for the Net assets is considered to be an appropriate benchmark as we
materiality benchmark consider this tobe one of the princpal considerations for investors
applied of the Fund in assessing the financial performance of the Fund. We

also believe that this provides an appropriate and consistent year-
on-year basis for our audit. We chose 1% based on professional
judgement, noting that it is also within the range of commonly
accepted asset-related thresholds that we consider acceptable.

We agreed withthe Board of Directors that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit
above 0.05% of each of the sub-fund’s NAV as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view,
warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

10
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Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Key audit matters

Key auditmatters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of ouraudit of

the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the Key audit matter

Valuation and existence of financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss We tested the valuation of the financial assets at fair

As described in Note 4 to the Financial value through profit or loss by agreeing the prices
Statements, the investment portfolios as at used in the valuation to independent third party
year-end comprised listed equity, debt sources.

securities, exchange traded funds, commercial
paper, options, future options, futures, swaps

We tested the existence of the investment portfolio by
and forwards.

agreeing the holdingsforfinancial assets at fairvalue
through profit or loss to independent custodian and
We focused on the valuation and existence of ~Prime broker confirmations.
financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss because they represent the principal We also considered the company’s disclosures for
element of the net assetvalue, which is themost compliance with International Financial Reporting
significant key performance indicator of the Standards as adopted by the EU.

company and has a direct effect on the

recognition of gains and losses on financial o . . .

assets at fair value through profit or loss. Ourtesting did not identify any material differences.

11
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To the Shareholders of Metatron Capital SICAV plc

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
management and administration section, the directors’ report, the manager’s report, the directors’
responsibility forthe financial statements and further information (but does notinclude the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon except as explicitly stated within the Report on other lega
and regulatory requirements.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially

inconsistentwith the financial statements or ourknowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Respo;éibilin'es of the directo_rs_ﬁrt—he financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements thatgive a true and fairview
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the requirements of the Maltese Companies Act
(Cap. 386), and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the

preparation of financial statements thatare free from material misstatement, whether dueto fraud or
error.

In preparingthefinancial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continueasa going concern, disclosing, asapplicable, matters related to going concernand using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend toliquidate the company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes ouropinion. Reasonable assuranceis a highlevel of assurance, butis not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance withISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonablybe expected to influence the economic d ecisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

12
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To the Shareholders of Metatron Capital SICAV plc

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Theriskofnot detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud

may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

* Obtainanunderstanding of internal control relevant to the auditin order todesign audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the company’s internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

¢ Concludeon the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditionsthat may castsignificant doubt on the company’sability to continue as a going concern.
If we concludethata material uncertainty exists, we are required t o draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statementsrepre sent the underlying transactionsand events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the auditand significantaudit findings, induding any significant deficienciesin internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicatedin ourreport because theadverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

13
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Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The Annual Report 2023 contains other areas required by legislation or regulation on which we are required
toreport. The Directors are responsible for these other areas.

The table below sets out these areas presented within the Annual Report, our related responsibilities and
reporting, in addition to our responsibilitiesand reporting reflected inthe Otherinformation section of our
report. Except asoutlined in the table, we have not provided anaudit opinion or any form of assurance.

Area of the Annual
Report 2023 and the

related Directors’
responsibilities
Directors’ report

(on pages 3t04)

The Maltese Companies
Act (Cap. 386) requires the
directors to prepare a
Directors’ report, which
includes the contents
required by Article 177 of

the Act and the Sixth
Schedule to the Act.

Our responsibilities

We are required to consider
whether the information given in
the Directors’ report for the
financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared
is consistent with the financial
statements.

We are also required to express
an opinion as to whether the
Directors’ report has been
prepared in accordance with the
applicable legal requirements.

In addition, we are required to
state whether, in the light of the
knowledge and understanding of
the  Company and its
environment obtained in the
course of our audit, we have
identified any material
misstatements in the Directors’
report, and if so to give an

indication of the nature of any
such misstatements.

Our reporting

In our opinion:

o theinformationgiven in the
Directors’ report for the
financial year for which the
financial statements are

prepared is consistent with
the financial statements; and

e the Directors’ report has
beenprepared in accordance
with the Maltese Companies
Act (Cap. 386).

Wehavenothingtoreport to you
in respect of the other
responsibilities, as explicitly
stated within the Other
information section.

14



Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of Metatron Capital SICAV ple

Area of the Annual
Report 2023 and the
related Directors’

Our responsibilities

Our reporting

responsibilities

Other matters on which we are
required to report by exception

We also have responsibilities under

the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386)
to report to you if, in our opinion:

adequateaccountingrecordshave
not been kept, or returns
adequate for our audit have not

beenreceived from branches not
visited by us.

the financial statements are not
in agreement with the accounting
records and returns.

we have not received all the
information and explanations
which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we require
for our audit.

15

We have nothing to report to

you in respect of these
responsibilities.



pwec

To the Shareholders of Metatron Capital SICAV ple

Other matter — use of this report

Ourreport, including the opinions, hasbeen prepared for and only forthe Company’s shareholders as
a body in accordance with Article 179 of the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386) and for no other
purpose. Wedonot,in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or
to any other personto whom this report is shown or intowhose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior written consent.

Appointrflen_t

We were first appointed as auditors of the company on 18 June 2022 for the period ended 30 June
2022, Our appointment has been renewed annually by shareholder resolution representing a total
period of uninterrupted engagement appointment of 2 years.

Nadia Vella
Principal

For and on behalf of
PricewaterhouseCoopers

78, Mill Street

Zone 5, Central Business District
Qormi

Malta

24 October 2023
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Melatron Capital SICAV plc
Mofes fo Finonelal Statements
For the year endod 38 June 7023

1 Reporting Entlty

Melatron Capital SICAV plc is a i scheme ized as an ded mulli-fund public limited Company wilh variable share capital. The Company was
registered on 20 April 2011 under the Companies Act, 1995 (Chapler 386, Laws of Malta) and is licensed and regulated by the Malta Financial Services Authority having Licence
Number CISA77H under the Investment Services Act, 1994 (Chapter 370, Laws of Malta) as a Professional Inveslor Fund. The Company was subsequently converted into a self-
managed Altemnative Investment Fund (and licensed as) on 4 September 2018

The Company is the reporting entity and pril all the aclivities of Metatron Capital SICAV plc as the enlity with the separate legal personality. The Statutory Financial
Statements are those presented for the Company. The sub-funds are an inlegral part of that entity, as these do not have separate legal personality

In accordance with the relevant local praclice, the financial statement caption amounts in the primary financial statemenls are also presenled in a segregaled format: those amounls
‘attributable 1o the founder shareholders', and those amounts ‘attributable to shareholders of the inveslor shares’ (segregated by the specific sub-fund). Also in accordance with

local practice, where appropriate, disclosures in the notes in the financial statements are segregated by sub-fund. Such presentation of the financial statements is nonetheless nota
statutory requirement

As at 30 June 2023 the Company had three (3) Sub-Funds, namely Metatron Global Macro Fund (“Global Macro™), Metatron Short Equity Fund {formerly known as Metatron Long-
Short Equity Fund) (“Short Equity”) and Metatron Long-Term Equity Fund (“Long-Term Equity™).

Melatron Long-Shert Equity (“Long-Short Equity”) changed its name lo Metatron Short Equity (“Short Equity™) Fund on 27 May 2022

Two of the Company's sub-funds, namely Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) and Long-Term Equity are listed on the Malta Stock Exchange. Long-Term Equity sub-
fund was admitted to trading on the Malta Stock Exchange on 30 June 2021.

Each Sub-Fund has its own invesiment objeclive and strategy

Global Macro

Investment Objective

The objective of the Metatron Global Macro Fund is the maintenance of value and the achi of a bal long-l capital appreciation with p
Investment Strategy
The Sub-Fund mainly invests in listed fnancial i world-wide includil ing markets, i in bonds, equities, futures and options denominated in major or [ocal

currencies, However, a strong emphasis will be given to the liquidity of the underlying positions

The Sub-Fund may seek to shelter its portfolio from market by hedging its i posili on an individual ar i basis from time to time. In order to
ensure a minimum risk elemenl, the Sub-Fund will focus on ing the depth of p i and will adopt a clear set of rules to d ine the i p in
view of the performance of the investment portfolio,

Any current liquidity might be deposited with banks on short to mid-term basis,

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity)
Investment Objective
The objective of the Melatron Shert Equity Fund (formerly known as Metatron Long-Short Equity Fund) is to achieve ial capital appreciation through driven,

value orienled investing in listed financial instruments including shares, ETFs, options, futures, fixed income and foreign exchange instruments. The Sub-Fund may invest in real
estate via ETFs, REITs or any similar i listed on v ised stock

Investment Strategy

The Sub-Fund will seek to attain its ii bjective by adopting a capital app ion i Pp! wilh the aim of achieving capital appreciation through medium to
long-term fundamentally driven, value oriented |nveshng techniques. The Sub-Fund will accordingly invest in a selected and diversified portfolio, including shares, ETFs, options,
futures, fixed income and loreign exchange instruments,

The Sub-Fund will not be targeting any particular induslry seclor or any particular geographical region. The regional and industry exposure will be driven by actual investment
opportunity as delermined by the Portfolio Manager on the basis of fundamental valuations, The Sub-Fund aims to achieve its investment objective through a thorough
fundamentally driven research that will lead to identification of investment opportunities thal meel speclfc mveslment cntena These criteria include but are not limiled to various
valuation metrics such as free cash llow, dividend yield and book value as well as | of d The Sub-Fund will target medium to fong term
helding period, however the Portfolio Manager might from time to time also engage in achve short-term trading to eliminate the impact of sudden market fluctuations. For the
purpose of management of excess liquidity, the Sub-Fund may invest in listed corporate bonds

When holding assets denominated in currencies other than the Functional Currency of this Sub-Fund, the resultant currency exposure could be hedged, if delermined necessary by
the Portfolio Manager. The slrong emphasis will be given to liquidity of all invesiment positions

Long-Term Equity
Investment Objective

The objective of Metatron Long-Term Equity Fund is to achieve long-term capital apprecialion over the business cycle. To achieve this, the Sub-Fund will invest in equities listed on
major developed markets with an intended holding period of several years.

Investment Strategy
The Sub-Fund will employ fundamemnl botlom-up stock analysis to defiver the desired returns. The Portiolio Manager of the Sub—Fund will conduct thorough fundamental analysis

using proprit crileria focused on balance sheet strength, operating margins, free cash flow and bility of in order to identify
corporations wnth along-term ability to deliver above-average shareholder returns,

Stocks thal meet such criteria will be considered for purchase and held for longer investment horizons, ranging in average from a few quarters to a few years. The emphasis will be
put on long-term nature of shareholder value creation rather than on quarter-by-quarier management moves. Only companies demonstrating hislory of several years lo decades of
above average value creation will be considered. However, the Sub-Fund will nol be quantitative in its nature as a purchase decision will not be made automatically once the
Company meets the sel d criteria. Qualitative review of and industry will be made as a part of the portfolio selection process. The companies thal no longer meet
the criteria either through actions by their managements or changes in their operating environment will be sold and removed from the list of suitable investments.




Metairon Capital SICAV plc
Notes to Financial Stalements
For the yesr ended 30 June 2021

1 Reporting Entity (continued)
Long-Term Equity (continued)

ility of suilable i will i lhe cash balance of the portiolio; however, the Sub-Fund is expected to be fully invested most of the times through Lhe cycle. The
Sub-Fund will not target any particular indusiry secters, calegories of issuers or specific geographic locations. In spite of this, the bulk of the exposure will be coming from G7
countries,
2 Basis of Preparation

21 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance wilh International Financial Reporting Standards as adopled by the Eurapean Union (“IFRS"). All
references in these linancial slatements to IAS, IFRS or SIC/IFRIC interpretations refer to those adopted by the European Union

The Company mainlains a separate account for each Fund, to which proceeds are credited, and against which expenses are charged Upon redemplion, shareholders are entitled
only to their propertion of the net assets held in the account relating to the Fund in which their participating shares are desi

The Statement of Financial Position presenls assets and liabilities in increasing order of liquidity and does not distinguish between currenl and non-currentitems.  All other assets
and liabilities are expected to be realised within one year

These financial slalements have also been prep: and pi din di wilh the provisions of the C: ies Act, 1995 (Chapter 386, Laws of Malla)

2.2 Basis of measurement

The financial have been prep: under the historical cost ion except for financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at fair
value,

2.3  Functional and presentation currency

These financial stalements are presented in euro, which is the Company's functional currency.

‘Functional currency' is the currency of the primary environment in which the Company spetates. If indicators of the primary economic environment are mixed, then management
uses its judgement lo determlne the lunclmm'll urrency that mest faithfully repeesents the economic effect of underlying if events and il The Company's
and fr are di in Euro, US dollars, Sterling, Swiss francs and other el ipt and r pi of Inveslor Shares in Metatron
SICAV ple sub-funds are denominated in Euro, US Dollars and Czech Korona. The performance of the Company is measured and reported lo investors in Euro. The expenses
fees, ian fees and inistration fees) are i d and paid mostly in Euro. Accordingly, management has determined that the functional

currency of the Company is Euro.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgements

Thep ion of financial in ity with IFRS requires lo make j i and i that affecl the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual resulls may differ from these eslimates.

and i pti are revi on an ongaing basis. isi to if i are ized in the period in which lhe estimates are revised and in
any future periods affected

ion about i and estimati inties that have a signi risk of resulting in a material adjustment within the next linancial year, as well as critical
judgments in applying accounting policies that have lhe most signil effect on the ized in the financial siatements are included in noles 4 and 5

3 Summary of signlficant accounting policies

The accounting policies applied in these financial statements are the same as those applied in the financial statemenls as at and for the year ended 30 June 2022 and have been
applied consistenlly throughaout these inancial slatements,

3.1 Foreign currency translation

Transactions and balances

Fareign currency i are mlo the functi currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where ilems are re-
measured. Monetary assels and liabilities d d in foreign ies at the reporting date are retranslaled to the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at
that date, Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies lhal are measured at fair value are retranslated to lhe functional currency at the exchange rate at
the date the fair value was determined. Net foreign exchange differences arising on retr ion of financial i at fair value through profit or loss are included in the
statement of comprehensive income, in the line item “Net income/(loss) from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss”. Net foreign exchange differences on
retranslation of other monetary assets and liabilities are included in the line item "Other foreign exchange gains/(losses)"

3.2 Financial assets and financial liabilities

and initial

Financial assels and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") are recognised when the Company becomes party 1o the contractual provisions of the instrument
Recognition takes place on the trade date where the p or sale of an i is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the inveslment within the timeframe
eslablished by the market concemed. Other financial assets and liabiliies are recognised on the date they are originated.




Metatron Capial SICAV plc
Notes 1o Fmancial Stalomonts
For the year ended 30 June 2083

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.2 Financial assets and financial liabllities (continued)

Classification

Oninilial recognition, the Company classifies financial assets as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL,

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the followi itions and is not desi d as at FVTPL:

- itis held wilhin a business model whose objeclive is to hold assels to collect contractua! cash flows; and
- its contractual lerms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments of Principal and Interest ("SPPI")
All other financial assets of the Company are measured at FVTPL

Business mode! assessment

in making an of the objective of lhe busil model in which a financial asset is held, the Company considers all of the relevant information about how the business is
managed, including:

- the documenled investment stralegy and the execution of this strategy in praclice. This includes whether the investment strategy focuses on earning contractual inlerest
income, maintaining a particular inlerest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any relaled liabilities or expected cash outflows or
realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to lhe Company's management;

- the risks Lhat affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within thal business model} and how those riske are managed;

how the i manager is p e.g. whether P ion is based on Ihe fair value of the assets or the cash flows and

- the lrequency, volume and liming of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing
recognition of the assets

The Company has determined that il has two business models.

- Held-to-collecl business model: this includes cash and cash equivalents, balances due from brokers and receivables from reverse sale and repurchase agreements. These
financial assels are held to collect contractual cash flow.

- Other business model: this includes debt ities, equity i i in ded i funds and derivatives These financial assets are managed
and their performance is evaluated, on a fair value basis, wilh frequent sales taking place

Assessment whether conlractual cash flows are SPP!

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as lhe fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest is defined as consideration for the time value of
money and for lhe credit risk associated with the principal amounl oulstanding during a particular period of time and for olher basic lending risks and costs (e.g- liquidity risk and
administrative costs}, as well as a profit margin that is consistent with the basis lending arrangements

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, lhe Company considers the contraclual terms of the instrument This includes assessing whetlier the financial sezet
conlains a conlractual ferm that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making Ihis assessment, the Company
considers:

- contingent events lhal would change the amount or timing of cashflows;

- leverage features;

- prepayment and exlension features;

- terms that limit the Company's claim lo cash flows from ified assets (e.g fealures); and

- leatures thal modify consideration of the time value of money (e g. periodical reset of interest rates)

Reclassifications

Financial assels are not 1o their initial ition unless the Company were to change its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all
affected financial assels would be recfassified on the first day of the first reporting period following lhe change in the business model

3
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3 Summary of significant accounting pollcies {continued)
3.2 Financial assets and financial liabilities {sontinued)

b offii ial assets

Financizl assets al
FVTPL These assels are subsequently measured at fair value, Net gains and losses, including any inlerest or dividend income and expense and foreign
exchange gains and losses, are recognised in ‘nel income/{loss) from financial instruments at FVTPL' in the statement of comprehensive income.

Debt ities, equity il il from op: ded i funds and derivative financial i are included in this category
Financial gssets al These assels are subsequently at it cost using the effective interest method. Interest income is recognised in ‘interest income
amortised cost calculated using the effective mleresl method', foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in 'net foreign exchange loss' and impairment is

recognised in 'impairment losses on financial i in the of p ive income, Any gain or loss on derecongition is also

recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents, balances due from brokers, loans and receivables from reverse sale and repurchase agreements are included in this
calegory.

Financial liabilities are

as at ised cost or FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if itis classified as held-for-trading, it is & derivative or itis designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.

Cther financial liabilities are al ised cost using the effective interest method. Inleresl expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss, Any gain ar loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabifities at FVTPL:
- Held for trading: securilies sold shorl and derivalive financial instruments
Financial liabilities at at amortised cosl:
- This includes balances due lo brokers, payables under sale and repurchase agreements and redeemable shares

Fair value measurement

‘Fair value' is Lhe price lhat would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the
principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair value of a liability refiects ils non-performance risk

The fair value of financial instruments traded in an active market is based on (heir quoted market prices al Lhe reporting dale withaul any deduction for estimated future selling costs
and adjusled for any tax effect on the maturity of such instruments. These instruments are priced at current mid ket prices. M: ded that mid ket prices for
such instruments are representative of fair value.

Equities traded over-the-counter are valued at the last reporled sale price on or within a reasonable range of days prior to the day of valuation quoted through any recognized
interdealer quotation system. Equities which are not listed on a slock exchange or traded over the-counler are valued al fair markel value as established by the directors or its
agents.

Units or shares in open-ended investmenl schemes are valued at the latest evailable net assel value as quoted by such collective i h The lalest avail net
asset value will be the latesl reporied net asset value or, il unavailable or not available for the timely calculalion of the valuation of the assets of the Company, the latest estimated
net assel value. Units or shares in closed-ended collecllve inveslment schemes will, il listed, quoted or fraded on a regulated market, be valued al the lalest trade price or a mid

(or, if il , a bid ion) or, if or unr ive, the probable realizalion value as at lhe Valuation Date estimated with care and in good faith by
the directors or their agents.

Exch traded

are valued on each relevant valuation dale at the setilement price for such |nstruments on such market as at the relevant valuahon dale. If
such price is not available, such value shall be the pi realization value esti with care and in good faith by the di Over-th it are
valued by the counterparty, which valuation will be verified monthly by the directors or their agenls as persons independent of the counterparty. Forward foreign exchange contracls
are valued with reference to the prevailing markel maker quotations, namely, the price at which a new forward contract of the same malurity could be undertaken or, if unavailable,
they will be valued by the counterparty at least monthly, which valuation will be verified by the directors or lheir agents as persens independent of the counterparty

Amotised cost measurement

The ‘amortised cost' of a financial asset or financial fiability is the amount at which the financial assel or financial liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amounl and, for financial
assets, adjusted for any loss allowance

Impairment

The Company i loss all for Exp Credit Losses ("ECLs") on financial assets measured at amortised cost. The Company measures loss allowances al an
amount equal lo lifetime ECLs, except for lhe following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- financial assels that are determined 1o have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

other financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of defaull oceurring over the expected life of lhe asset) has not i d signi since initial
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
3.2 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Impairment (Continued)

When delermining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has il d signi since initial ition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and
supponahle |nformat|un thatis re|evunt and available wilhout undue cost or effort, This includes both itative and qualif i ion and analysis, based on the Company's
and infa d credit and i ing forward-looking information. The Company assumes that the credit risk on & financial asset has increased

significantly if it is more than 30 days past due

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

the borrower is unlikely to pay its credil obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

- the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The Company considers a financiat asset to have low credit risk when the credit rating of the counterparty is equivalent to the globally d iion of i grade’
The Company conslders this to be BBB+ or higher per S&P Raling Agency. In case of non-rated counterparties, Company involves by perational based on
P market it and any other factors impacting such an assesment.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default evenls over the expecled life of a financial instrument,

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from defaull events that are possible within the 12 months afier the reporting dale (or a shorler period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months)

The i period i d when estimating ECLs is the i period over which the Company is exposed lo credit risk,
Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credil losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls {i.e, the difference between the cash flows due lo
the enlity in accordance with the contracl and the cash flows that lhe Company expecis to receive)

ECLs are discounled at lhe effective interest rale of lhe financial asset
Credit-impaired financial assels

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether linancial assets caried at amortised cost are credil-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired' when one or more events
that have a detrimenlal impact on the estimated fulure cash flows of lhe financial assel have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
a breach of contracl such as a default or being more than 90 days past due; or
- itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation
Presentation of aflowance for ECLs in the stalement of financial position
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducled from lhe gross carrying amount of the assets.

Wite-off

The gross carrying amounl of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no

p i of ing a financial assetin its entirety or a partion thereof.
Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the conlraclual rights to the cash flows from Lhe asset expire, or it lransfers (he rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which subslantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are Iransferred or in which lhe Comparny neither transfers nor retains subslantially afl

the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of lhe financial assel. Any interest in such transferred financial assets lhat is created or relained by the Company is
recognized as a separate asset or liability

On derecognition of a financial asset, lhe difference between the carrying amount of lhe assel (or the camrying amount allocated to the portion of the assel derecognised), and
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its | obligations are di lled or expire

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the slatement of financial position when, and only when, the Company has a current legal right to offsel
the amounts and it intends eilher to settle on a net basis or o realize the asset and seltle the liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRSs, e g for gains and losses arising from a group of similar transactions, such as gains and
losses from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss.

3.3 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenls comprise cash with banks and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are shorl-lerm, highly-liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant changes in value. Cash and deposits wilh banks and brokers are stated at their principal amount.
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.4 Amounts due from/to brokers

Amounts due from and 1o brokers rep i or ities sold and for it that have been contracted for but not yet settled or delivered on
the stalement of financial position date respectively. The due from brokers balance is held for colleclmn

Amounts due from snd due 1o brokers{margin accounts) are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct ion costs, and sub: tly measured at their amortised
cost using lhe effective interest methad.

3.6 Revenue recognition

Interest is recorded on an accruals basis. Divid are on an ex-dividend date basis

3.6 Expenses
All expenses are recognized on an accrual basis,
3.7 Redeemable shares

The redeemable shares for each sub-fund provide investors with the right to require redemption for cash at a value proportionate to the investor's share in the sub-fund's nel
assefs, at each monthly redemption date and also in the event of the Company’s liquidation

The reds le shares are classified as financial liabilities at d cost and are measured at the redemption amount. In accordance wnth the Company's offenng
ds the i of the individual red shares are calculated using the mid-market prices of the 's
ities short positi In with IFRS 13, lair value measurements are based on quoted market mid-prices on each valuation day for both financial assets

and financial liabilities where this price falls within the bid-ask spread. In circumstances where the market mid-price is not within the bid-ask spread, the Board of Direclors
determines the point wilhin the bid-ask spread thal is most representative of fair value.

3.8 Segment reporting

The disclosure of segment lnformahon is requlved by those entities whose debt or equity instruments are fraded in a public market or that file, or are in the process of filing, their
financial with a ion or other regulatory arganination for the purpsse of issuing any class of instruments in a public market

The Company has units listed on the Malla Slock Exchange, though thal listing is primarily intended to facilitate the issue of units in the sub-funds. Transactions in all investor
shares are executed via the transfer agent and the transfer value of executed transactions is delermined in accordance with the relevant prospectus of each sub-fund and is based
on the net assets per unit at each valuation date.

3.9 New standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations

3 to i and interp ions as by the Europ Union effective in the current period
The following new dard: to standards and interpretations were endorsed by the EU and are eflective for the current reporting period:
- d to to C | F in IFRS d

- Interest rate benchmark reform Phase 2 (Amendments lo IFRS9, IAS39, IFRS7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16) - effective on 1 January 2021 and endorsed by the EU

The adoption of these standards did not have a significanl impacl on the financial statements of the Company.

3 to i standards and interpretations that are nol yet effective

The following new ) lo and interpl lions were end d by lhe EU bul are elfective for periods beginning after 1 July 2023, and have nol been
applied in preparing these financial slatements:

- Classificalion of liabiliies as currenl or non-current {amendment to IAS 1) - Nol yet endorsed by the EU
- Definition of Material (Amendments to |AS 1 and IAS 8)

None of these , 1o and interpretations are expecled to have a significart impact on the financial slatements of the Company in the period of their
initial applicalion.

4 Falr value measurements

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets are based on quoted market mid-prices at the close of trading on the period end date. A financial instrument
is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulalory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market fransactions on an arm's length basis

The fair value of financial assets and liabililies that are not traded in an aclive market is determlned by using valuation techniques. The Company uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each period-end date i used far dardised financial i , such as options
and tolal retum swaps, include the use of comparable recent arm's length transactions, oplion pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants
making the maximum use of market inputs and relying as litlle as possible on entity-specific inputs

The output of a model is always an estimate or approximation of a value that cannot be determined with certainty, and valuation techniques employed may not fully reflect all factors
relevant to the positions the Company holds. Valuations are therefore adjusted, where appropriate, lo allow for addilional factors including model risk, liquidity risk and counlerparty
risk.
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4 Fair value measurements (continued)

The following table provides an analysis of financial i that are to initial ition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to
which Lhe fair value is observable:

Level 1 - quoted market prices {unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument;

Level 2 - i i based on ab: inputs, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using:
quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoled prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation
techniques where all significant inpuls are directly or indirecily observable from market data;

Level 3 - valuati i using signif unobservable inpuls. This category includes all i where the i hni includes inputs not based on observable
data, including the Company’s own assumptions, and the unobservable inputs have a signi effecl on the i t's ion. This category includes instruments that are
valued based on quoted prices for similer instruments where significant unobservable adjustment or assumptions are required to reflect differences between lhe instruments

30 June 2023
Global Macro Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ € € €
Financial assets a fair value through profit or loss:
Bonds 33,816,370 - * 23,816,370
Equities 757,225 . - 757,225
Listed futures 139,930 - - 138,830
Forwards and Spot - 1,787,830 - 1,787,830
Total 34713835 1,787,830 = 35,501,355
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit o loss:
Listed futures (390,956} E 3 {390,958)
Forwards and Spot - {1.550,275) - {1,550,275)
Total (380, 556} (1.2&,2?5! = {1,941.231)
Short Equity {lormerly known as Long-Shart Equity) Level 1 Level 2 Level 2 Total
€ € € €
Financial assets a fair value through profil or loss:
Equities 781,184 - . 781,184
Lisled aptions 3,666 - - 3,666
Listed futures 30,886 - = 30,686
Forwards and Spot - 683 - E83
Total 515,535 51 - 816229
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Listed equity securities sold short (10,757,358 - - (10,7 57,356]
Total (10,757,356 E = |1D,757 356
Long-Term Equity Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ € € €
Financial assets at fair value through prefit or loss:
Bonds 18,117,532 E . 18,117,532
Commercial paper 357,008 = - 357,998
Exchange traded fund 841,889 - - 841,689
Equities 122,956,420 - - 122,956,420
Listed futures 58,779 - . 58,779
Listed options 139,921 - . 139,921
Forwards and Spot - 1,858,152 1,058,182
Total 142.472.339 1,858,152 - 144,330,531
Financial lfabilities at fair value through prafit or loss:
Listed equity securities sold short {131,178) - - (131,176}
Listed futures {207) - - (207)
Listed options {451,386) = - (451,386)
Listed future options (745) - . (745)
Faorwards and Spol - (1,308,025) - 1,908,029}
Total (583,514) {1.008,028) - [2. 401,543}
30 June 2022
Global Macro Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ € € L4
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Bonds 26,404,389 - . 26,404,389
Equities 4,961,928 . . 4,951,928
Lisled future options 62,438 ¥ - 62,438
Listed lutures 113,373 - £ 113,373
Forwards and Spol - 335,581 . 335,581
Total 31542128 334 58 = 31,877,708
e —
Financial liabilities at fair value through profil or loss:
Listed futures {375,137} - - {375,137}
Forwards and Spat . [351,078) = (361 678
Total | 375, 137) (351.078} - (T35.215]

35
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4 Fair value measurements (continued)

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ € € €
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;
Equities 1,085,088 = = 1,085,068
Listed options 120,624 - - 120,524
Total 1,205,652 . - 1,205,652
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Listed equity securities sold short (6,597,468) -« - (6,597,468)
Lisled aptions (37,351) . . (37,351)
Forwards and Spot - 181,348) - 141,548}
Total iﬁ.ﬁ:i‘.a‘lﬂ 161, 548) = 18,725, SEBI
Long-Term Equity Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ € € €
Financial assels at fair value through profit or loss:
Bonds 1,188,667 : 3 1,168,667
Equities 125,440,800 - - 125,440,800
Listed futures 148,262 . . 148,262
Lisled options 227,776 - 227,776
Swaps 5 58,847 . 58,847
Listed future options 17,474 . . 17,474
Forwards and Spot = 2735397 £ 273537
Total 127,022,078 2,764 244 - 120.807.223
Financial liabilities at fair value through prefit or loss:
Listed equity securities sald short (587,419) . : (587,419)
Lisled futures (415,490) . - (415,490)
Listed options (88,421) - - (88,421)
Swaps S (143,503) - {143,503}
Listed future aptions (49,447) . - (49,447)
Forwards and Spot - (10,640,256) - (10,640,256)
Total [ERIIEL [10,763,755) - (11,524,536

The financial instruments not measured at FVTPL include:

| Cash and cash equivalents, balanices due from/lo brokers and receivables/payables under sale and repurchase agreements and trade and other receivables. These are
short-lerm financial assets and financial liabilities whose carrying amounts approximate fair value, because of their shaft-term nature and the high credd quativy of
counterparties; and

L} Nel assets attril to holders of red: bl shares The Company routinely redeems and issues the redeemable shares at the amount equal to the proportionate share
of net assets of the sub-fund at the time of lcul; on a basis i with that used in these financial statements, Accordingly, the carrying amount of net
assels attril to holders of red ble shares approxii fair value. The shares are calegorised inlo Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy

] Financial risk management

The Company is a self- scheme and any reference 1o the Invesiment Manager refers to the founder who make decisi in line with the
policies set oulin the Offering Memorandum and Supplements.

Risk management is caried out by the Investment Manager. The Company's overall risk management program focuses on lhe unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimize polential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

The Company is exposed lo various risks arising from the financial instruments it holds. The risk management policies employed by the Company to manage these risks are
discussed below.

Although Metatron funds are not materially and directly affecled by i d inflalion, is itoring the very closely especially in relation to the interest
rales. In some situalions, it tries to marginally benefit from the changing inflation expectations, particularly in the management of Metatron Global Macro Fund

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - e.g. interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices will affect the Fund's income or the fair value of its holdings of
financial instruments.

The Company's stralegy for the management of markel risk is driven by the Fund's i bjective. For iption of this, refer to Section 1 Reporting Entity.

The Companys markel risk is managed on a daily basis by the respective portiolio ger in with the policies and procedures in place This includes the
of a Risk M: Policy (RMP) and of nt Process F Then the respective portfolio performs the daily pre-trade-checks against the

limits setin the RMP which include also the limils set in the Offering Supplement. In the case of any breach an lation procedure ibed in RMP is acl The Company's

markel posilions are monitored monthly by the Risk manager who reports lo Board of directors

The principal tool used to measure the markel risk expostre of the Company is a VaR analysis prepared by MSC! RiskMetrics. The VaR ofthe Companys portfolio is the estimated

loss that may arise on the portfolic over a specified period of time (holding period) from an adverse market within y. VaR model used is based on the
95% confidence level and assumes 10-days holding peried. The overall structure of VaR limits is subject lo lhe review and pp! of the | Ci i and Board of
Directors. VaR is measured monlhly. Quarterly reports of use of VaR limits are submitted to the | i and regular summaries are submitled lo the Board of
Directors

gh VaR is an imp tool for ing market risk, the assumptions on which the model is based give rise to some limilati including the foll g:

- A 10 - day holding period assumes that it is possible to hedge or dispose of positions within that period. This may nol be the case of certain illiquid assets or in situations in
which there is severe general market illiquidity

- A 85% confidence level does not reflect losses thal may occur beyond this level, meaning that within the model used there is a 1% probability that losses could exceed the
VaR

- The use of historical data as a basis for delermining Lhe possible range of future outcomes may nol always cover all possible scenarios, especially these of an exceptional
nature

The VaR Measure is dependent on the funds’ position and the volatility of market price.

The VaR of an unchanged position reduces if market price volalility declines, and vice versa.
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& Fi ial risk

Market risk {continued)

The manager uses VaR thresholds for overall market risk to each fund lo monitor markel risk. VaR is measured monthly, with quar

directars and Risk manager.

The below lable provides the overall VaR calculations for each sub-fund and period:

Global Macro

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Shart Equity)

Long-Term Equity

Currency risk

Y reports submitted Lo the Board of
2023 2022
362,161 909,686
949,089 1,549,323
3,804,689 8,809,630

Cumency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will flucluate because of changes in foreign exchange rales,

The Company holds assets denominated in currencies olher than Euro, the functional currency. It is, therefore, exposed to currency risk as the value of the assets denominated in

other currencies will fluctuate due to changes in exchange rales.

The Company uses derivatives to manage ils exposure to foreign currency. The instruments include foreign currency forward contracts, fulures and options, The Company does not

apply hedge accounting.

The table below

30 June 2023

Australian Dollar (AUD)
British Pound {(GBP)
Canadian Doltar (CAD)
Chinese Yuan (CNH)
Czeck Keruna (CZK}
Danish Krone (DKK)
Hong Kong Dollar (HKD})
Japanese Yen (JPY)
Mexican Peso (MXN)
Norwegian Krone (NOK})
South African Rand (ZAR)
Swedish Krona (SEK)
Swiss Franc (CHF)

U 8 Dollar (USD)

The table below

30 June 2022

Australian Dollar (AUD)
British Pound (GBP)
Canadian Dallar (CAD)
Chinese Yuan (CNH)
Czeck Koruna (CZK)
Danish Krone (DKK)
Japanese Yen (JPY)
Norwegian Krone (NOK)
New Zealand Dollar (NZD)
South African Rand (ZAR)
Swedish Krona (SEK)
Swiss Franc (CHF)

U.S Dollar {USD}

the C y's exp 10 y risk as at 30 June 2023:
€ % of Net Assets € % of Net Assets € % of Net Assetls
Short Equity
(formely
known as Long Long-Term
Global Macro Short Equity) Equity
> 0.00% - 0.00% 735,773 0.51%
31,632 0.09% 27,439 0.28% 14,795,589 10.27%
. 0.00% (4] 0.00% 1,468,074 1.02%
12,105 0.03% . 0.00% - 0.00%
5,757,810 15.90% 105,883 1.07% 1,188 0.00%
- 0.00% 65,100 0.66% 2,227,834 1.55%
(40,413) {0.11%) - 0.00% {1.129) 0.00%
(125) 0.00% 0.00% . 0.00%
(11,805) (0.03%) = 0.00% - 0.00%
(297) 0.00% - 0.00% 12,220 0.01%
- 0.00% 232,953 2.36% = 0.00%
- 0.00% 239,469 243% 132,346 0.08%
(31,344) (0.09%) - 0.00% 1,516,364 1.05%
5,805,608 18.79% 2,232,210 22.81% 2,029,367 58.83%
522881 M-Eﬁ 2,903,083 29.41% 102518 G5B T1.40%
the Company 1o y risk as at 30 June 2022:
€ % of Net Assets € % of Net Assets € % of Net Assets
Short Equity
{formerly
known as Long Long-Term
Global Macro Short Equity) Equity
(48) 000% (37) 000% 1,446,098 113%
1,834,790 478% (147) 000% 10,344,061 810%
(5,202) {0 01%) [4}] 000% 1,815,812 142%
21,383 008% 3 000% - 000%
4,474,828 1165% 84,692 073% 2,493 000%
- 000% 83,133 072% 1,802,751 141%
(125) 0.00% = 0.00% 324,055 025%
(337) 000% 000% 739,622 058%
(48) 0.00% = 0.00% = 0.00%
. 000% 5,688 005% = 000%
e 0.00% 190,837 165% 2,542,053 1.99%
2,334 001% {96) 0.00% 2,250,019 176%
13,205,848 34.38% 4,121,402 a5 58% 51,400 625 537845
16 221 S0 E7T% 2AB54TY 38 B4 102,678,560 B042%

Sensitivity of currency risk is included within the overall VaR measure presenled earlier
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§ Fil ial risk mar 1t (continued)
Interest rale rishk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuale because of changes in market interesl rates.

The Investment Manager manages the Company's exposure to interest rate risk on a daily basis in accordance with the Company's investment objectives and policies. The
Company's overall exposure to interest rate risk is monilored on a quarterly basis by the board of directors

The Company is exposed to the risk that the Ffair value or future cash flows of its financial instruments will fluctuale as a result of changes in market interest rates, changes in
market risk premia and changes in general i diti The i manager carefully monilors the interest rate risk arising from the interest-bearing financial
instruments held by all the sub-funds. Based on the investment manager's view on future interest rates, bonds of various durations are held in order lo optimize portfolio returns

Sensitivity of interest rate risk is included within the overall VaR measure presented earlier.

Exposure to fixed and variable interest rates

The Funds have direct exposure to fixed interest rates through inveslmenls in fixed income instruments Exposures to interest rale risks are monitored via risk management
procedures involving stress testing and sensitivities.

Maturities of debt securities

As at 30 June 2023

Short Equity Short Equity
(formerly {formerly
known as Long known as Long Long-Term Long-Term
Global Macro Global Macro Short Equity} Short Equity) Equity Equity
€ {% of total) € {% of total) € (% of total)
0-2years 17,382,465 51.40% - - 7,217,889 39.84%
2-5 years 8,538,110 25.25% - - 3,602,551 19.88%
5+ years T.R95.TR5 23.35% - - 7,297,033 40.26%
31816370 2001 - - 18,117,533 100.00%
As at 30 June 2022
Short Equity Short Equity
(formerly {formerly
known as Long known as Long Long-Term Long-Term
Global Macro Global Macro Short Equity) Short Equity) Equity Equity
€ (% of tolal) € (% of total) € (% of total)
0-2 years 8,959,351 33 93% - - 879,718 7401%
2-5 years 11,506,058 43 58% . - 308,949 25 99%
5+ years 5,216,382 22 49% - - - -
26,404,385 \OD_DG%' - - 1. 188.967 100.00%
Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its conlraclual obligations resulling in financial loss to the Company.
Alli made by (he il in fixed income inslruments take inlo account the credit risk of such i and more ifically whether the yield on the

security adequately compensates the investor for Ihe risk of the counterparty defaulting

At 30 June 2023, all of the Company's cash balances and investments are held with the Company's Custodians/Brokers. The Company's custodians/brakers ratings vary from A- to
BBB- (2022: A- to BBB-), with four custodians/brokers being nol rated. The Portfolio Managers do ot anficipate any material losses as a result of this concenlration,

Balances due from brokers rep margin cash for b d ities and sale i awaiting Credil risk relaling lo unsetiied
transactions is considered smali due to the short settiement period involved and the credit quality of the brokers.
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3 Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The table below analyzes Global Macro’s and Long-Term Equity's portfolio of debt instruments by S&P rating agency category

Long-Term Equity Fund

Global Macro Fund

Credit rating 2023 2023 2023 2023 2022 2022
€ ' of debt Instrumonts. € % of debt Instruments % of debt Instruments
A- 1,348,740 7.45% 715,575 212% - 0.00%
B 567,409 3.13% - 0.00% 106,239 0.40%
B- 683,440 3.83% 893,440 2,05% 1,873,727 710%
B+ 980,624 541% 490,312 1.45% 1,056,911 400%
BB - 0.00% 936,708 277% 395,341 150%
BB- 2,651,162 1463% 285,193 1.14% = 0.00%
BB+ 3,655,708 20.18% 3,072,415 9.10% . 000%
BBB- 283,230 1.58% - 0.00% - 000%
cce - 0.00% 704,498 2.08% 811,252 307%
cces 943,918 5.21% 3,129,155 9.25% 1,812,272 686%
D - 0.00% 48,608 0.14% = 000%
NR B,853,301 3804 23,630,467 £0.01% 20,213,500 76 554
18,117,532 100, M 33.816.370 100.00% 26404363 100 00%:
The 2022 Long - Term Equity portfolio of debt instrumenls is all unraled
Concentration of credit risk
The investment manager reviews the credit concentration of debt securities held based on counlerparties and indusiries.
As at 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022, the Company's debl P were in the foll
Global Macro Fund 30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Fair Value % of Net Assets Fair Value % of Net Assets
€
FInanclal assets at falr value through profit or loss
Bonds
Basic Malerials 808,312 1.68% 0 00%
Consumer Discretionary 566,350 1.56% - 000%
Consumer Staples 34,950 0.10% 803,168 209%
Consumer, Non-cyclical 569,201 1.57% 289,791 075%
Cammodities - 0.00% 420,981 110%
Energy 5,581,885 16.42% 6,738,076 17 54%
Financial 17,554,267 48.48% 15,101,624 3931%
Govemment = 0.00% 405,486 108%
Health Care 2,506,664 8.82% - 0.00%
Industrial 4,084,746 11.28% 2,645,263 689%
Materials 1,570,126 4.34% - 000%
Nol Applicable 24,305 0.07% . 0 00%
Utilities 715,674 1.98% - 000%
33816370 S340% 26,404,389 BH,7 45
Long-Term Equity 30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Fair Value % of Net Assets Fair Value % of Net Assels
€
Flnanclal assets at falr value through profit or loss
Bands
Communications 567,408 0.39% 000%
Consumer Discretionary 1,358,434 0.94% . 000%
Consumer Staples 345,115 0.24% = 000%
Consumer, Non-cyclical 991,670 0.69% - 0.00%
Consumer, Cyclical 997,730 0.68% - 0.00%
Energy 3,228,586 2.24% E 000%
Financial 1,164,073 0.81% 879,718 069%
Health Care 3,321,332 2.30% . 000%
Industrial 1,948,352 1.35% 308,949 0.24%
Materials 3,471,029 2.41% . 000%
Utilities 23,002 0.50%, < 0.00%
18,117,502 12.56% 1188657 0.03%

There were ne significant concentrations in the debt securities of credit risk to any individual issuer or group of issurers at 30 June 2023 or 30 June 2022. No individual issuer
exceeded 14.58% (2022: 13,16%) of the net assets altributable Lo the holders of redeemable shares either at 30 June 2023 or at 30 June 2022
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[ Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk {continued)

The Fund also restricts its exposure to credit losses on the trading derivative instruments it holds by entering into masler netting with tie: d
brakers) with whom it undertakes a i volume of i Master netting arrangements do not resultin an offset of statement of financial position assets and Ilabllmes.
as ransactions are usually settled on a gross basis. However, the credit risk iated with is reduced by a master netting arrangement to the extent that if an
event of default occurs, all amounts wilh the counterparty are terminated and settled on a net basis, The Fund's overall exposure to credit risk on derivative instrumenis subject to a
masler netting can change ially within a short period, as il is affected by each transaction subject to the amangement. Refer to ‘Offsetting financial assets and

financial liabilities’ section in note 5 for further analysis of the Fund's master netting arrangements

Al i in lisled ities are paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default is considered minimel, as delivery of securities sold is only made
once the broker has received payment Payment is made on a p once the ities have been ived by the broker, The trade will fail if either party fails lo meet ils
obligation.

Amounts arising from ECL

Impairment on cesh and cash equivalents, balances due from brokers and loans and other receivables has been measured on a 12-month expecled loss basis and reflects the
short maturities of the exposures. The Company considers thal these exposures have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the counterparties or based on the
financial position of the respective counterparty,

The Company monitors changes in credit risk on these exposures by tracking published extemal credit ratings of the counterparties. To determine whether published ratings remain
up to date and to assess whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk al the reporting dale that has not been reflected in the published rahngs the Company

supplemenls this by reviewing changes in bond yields, where available, credit default swap (CDS) prices logether with ilable press and ¥ ion about
counterparlies.

12-month and lifetime probabililies of default are based on historical data supplied by S&P for each credit rating. Loss given default p g y refllecl an d
recovery rate of 0%, However, if the asset were credit-impaired, then the estimate of loss would be based on a specific of exp: cash and on the original

effectve interest rate.
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting nhilgskmn mssotiated with ity ﬂnnacuﬂ liabllites thal are setfed by delivering cash or another financial
asset. At 30 June 2023 and 2022, the Company's liabilities include net assels attribitable to red and other finanaial liabilifies

The Company is exposed to monlhly cash redemptions of the Company's shares The Company's listed securities are considered readily realizable, as the majority of the securities
are listed on a stock exchange. The Company may periodically invest in deri traded over the counter, which are not traded in an organized market and may be
illiquid. At 30 June 2023 and 2022, the Company held no i that it cor red illiquid. The following table details the Company's liquidity analysis for its financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the camying amounl of the financial liabilities that settle on a net hasis and lhe carmying amount of those financial liabilities thal require gross
settlement

All liabililies of the SICAV are paid in 1-3 monlhs

As at 30 June 2023
Global Macro Less than 1 month 13 months Mate than 3 manths Total
€ € € €
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 1,941,231 . . 1,941,231
Due to broker 2,086,672 . 3 2,066,672
Management and performance fees payable 143,311 - - 143,311
Agorued expenses and ather fiakiles - 58,590 . 58,590
Net assets altril o participating - - 36,210,123 36,210,123
4751214 58550 35,210.028 aD,418,§27
As al 30 June 2023, Global Macro had no pending ptions pay - There were no ptions ordered in the 3 months after the reporting period
Short Equity {formerly known as Long-Short Equity) Less than 1 month 1-3 months Maore than 3 months Total
€ € € €
Financial liabilities at fair value through profil or loss 40,757,356 . - 10,757,356
Due to braker 767,004 - - 767,004
Managemenl and performance fees payable 42,430 - - 42,430
Accrued expenses and other liabilities = 64,970 - 64,970
Nat assets altril tor icipatil - - 8,870,726 887T0.T26
11,506,750 54570 0,670,726 21802 488

As at 30 June 2023, Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) had no pending redemptions payments- There were no redemptions ordered in the 3 months after the
reporting period

Long-Term Equity Less than 1 month 1-3 months More than 3 months Total
€ € € €
Finansial lab#ies at fair yalue through peatit of fess 2,491,543 . ] 2,491,543
Due to broker 2,774,223 - - 2,774,223
Management and performance lees payable 314,285 - - 314,285
Acorued espenses and ether ||abslies - 115,857 2 115,857
Net assets attril tor icipati - - 144,008 475 144,068,475
500,051 115,857 144,008, 475 145,784 363
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5 Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk {continued)

As at 30 June 2023, Long-Term Equity had no pending pi pay A ! ordered in the 3 months after the reporting period amounted lo €2,236,592 and were
fully paid in October 2023,

As at 30 June 2022

Global Macro Less than 1 month 1-3 months Mot than 3 months Total
€ € € €
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 736,215 - . 736,215
Due to broker 481,924 - * 481,924
bianagerment and perfennance Tees payshle 147,832 - - 147,832
Acoued mepenses and niher |ebiities - 68,663 . 68,663
Net assets attril to icipati - - 36,417,005 38.417.008
1_3&,_57‘ 5B,663 38,417,008 38 B51.640
Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) Less than 1 month 1-3 months More than 3 months Total
€ € € €
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 6,726,368 . . 6,726,368
Due to broker 895,110 - - 895,110
Management and performance fees payable 46,495 . . 46,495
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 30,568 - 30,568
Net assets attr to participali - - 11,548,555 11 448 085
7EaT 13 E 11540 565 16,247 506
Long-Term Equity Less than 1 month 1-3 months More than 3 monihs Total
€ € € €
Finaneial lisbilities st fair value thraugh ot o losn 11,924,536 . = 11,924,536
Due to broker 5,843,051 - - 5,843,051
Management and performance fees payable 314,962 . . 314,962
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 103,144 - 103,144
Net assets attril tor parlicipating sh. - . 127,841,151 127,841,151
18,062 548 lCE 144 427 641,151 145,825 844

Emerging market risks

Investmenls in emerging markets can be subject to risks not normally associated with more developed markets. These risks mainly relate to (he inslability of the ecanomies of
emerging markets, political uncertainties and, in some cases, Lhe fack of liquidity in the market

The table below presents the split of the investment portfolio, excluding forwards and spots for each sub-fund as at 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022:

As at 30 June 2023
Short Equity Short Equity
(formerly (formerly
known as Long known as Long Long-Term Long-Term
Global Macro Global Macro Short Equity) Short Equity) Equlity Equlty
v % 15
€ (% of total Investments) € (% of total investments) € {% of total Investments)
Developed markets 19,555,563 56.98% (9,561,646} 986.17% 135,040,342 85.17%
Emerging markets 14,767,008 43.03% 381,174) 3.83% 6,548,463 483%
Total 34,322 589 100.00% 3,842, B20) 104.00%% 141,688,625 100.00%
As at 30 June 2022
Short Equity Short Equity
(formerly (tormerly
known as Long known as Long Long-Term Long-Term
Global Macro Global Macro Short Equity) Short Equity) Equity Equity
€ (% of total Investments) € (% of total Investments) € {% of total Investments)
Developed markets 13,080,057 42 00% (3,5186,323) 64 77%_ 123,135,083 97 8B%
Emarging matkets 18,078 034 58 0% 11.912.8035) A5.23% 26524583 212%
Total 31,166.851 100.00'% [5.42 9,126? 102 00%, R 100.00%
Collateral and other credit and their ial effect

The Company miligates the credit risk of derivatives and reverse sale and repurchase agreements by entering inlo master netting agreements and holding collateral in the form of
cash and marketable securities

Apart Irom mitigation of the credit risk of derivatives, reverse sale and repurchase agreements, he Company does not use any collateral or other credit enhancements.

Derivative risk

The Company may use derivative financial i in the of its foreign currency exposure. The Company may purchase foreign exchange forward and currency
futures contracts lo hedge assets and liabilities d i in foreign i

The pricing of cerlain ivalive i fudi for differences, futures and options, cary a degree of volatility. In addition, the Company is subject lo the risk of
failure of any of the exchanges on \Mm:h it trades or of their clearing houses and in certain cases the counterparties with whom the frades are carmied out The Company may
purchase options on a variety of and thi ter markets to hedge exposure of underlying fixed income or equity holdings. Trading in futures and options

is 8 highly specialized activity and although it may increase the tolaf return of the segregated portfolios, it may also decrease the lotal return
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5 Finaneial rilsk management (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

The Cumpany emers in two types of derivali i traded derivati and th ler (OTC) derivali Credit risk arising from exchange traded
is by margin requi

OTC derivalives expose the Company lo the risk that the parties to the derivative financial i might default on their obligations lo the Company.

Derivative financial instruments such as fulures and options are transacled with counterparties EDF, Cowen and T ion whereas derivative financial i such as

foreign currency forwards are transacted with counterparties J&T Banka and EDF. One counterparty is rated BBB+ based on rating agency Standard & Poor's rating. The other
counlerparties are nol rated, however they are all deemed reputable credit institutions

Offsetting assels and ial liabilitie

None of the financial assets and financial liabilities are offset in the statemenl of financial position. The disclosures set out in the tables below include financial assets and financial
liabilities that are subject to an enforceable master netting or similar that covers similar financial instruments

Similar agreements include derivalive clearing agreements, global masler repurchase agreements and global master securiies lending agreements_ Similar financial instruments
include derivatives, sale and repurchase agreements, reverse sale and rep agre and ilies borrowing agi

The ISDA and similar master netting arrangements do nol meet he criteria for offsetting in the statement of financial posilion, This is because lhey create a right of set-off of
recognized amounts that is enforceable only following an event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparties. In addition, the Company and its
counterparlies do notintend fo settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

The Company receives and gives collateral in the form of cash and markelable securities in respect of the following transactions:

- derivatives; and
- securilies borrowing.

Such collateral is subject lo Lhe slandard industry terms of ISDA's Credit Support Annex. This means that iti digi as can be pledged or sold during the

term of the transaction but have to be returned on malurity of he transaction, The terms also give each counterparty lhe right to lerminate the relaled transactions on the
counterparty's failure to post collateral

Flnanclal assets subject to masier netting and simllar agreements
30 June 2023 Related amounts not offset In the stalement of
Gross amount of Net amounts financlal position
recognised financlal of financlal assets Flnanclat
Gross amount Hablitlen offsgt in the presented In the Instruments Cash
of of of h
financial assets fnanclal position  financlal position callateral} recelved Netamount

Global Macro €

Type of linancial assets

Farwards and spots 1,787,830 - 1,787,830 11,787,830} - >
Total 1,747,837 - 1,787 830 {1,767.630) - -

Short Equity {formerly known as Long-short Equity)

Type of financial assets

Forwards and spots 891 - 883 (633} - -
Total i) - 683 B33 £ *
Financlal subject lo master netting and slmllar
30 June 2023 Related amounts not offsetin (he statement of
Gross amount of Netamounts of financial poslition
recognlised financlal financlal llabilites Financlal
Gross amount assets offset In the presented In the Instruments Cash
of of of h
financlal llabllities financlal position  financlal position collateral) posted Netamount
Global Macro € € €
Type offinancial liabilities
Derivatives - fulures (380,956) . (390,956) = 390,856 -
Forwards and spots 11, 550,275) - (1,550,275} 1.TET.B30 (237.555)
Total [1.241,231) -~ (1.541.231) 1,787,630 153.401

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity}

Type of financial liabilities

Forwards and spols - - - 893 (593} -
Total 2 - T G431 (593 -
Long-Term Equity

Type of financial liabilities

Derivatives - futures (207) - (207) - 207 -
Derivatives - futures options (745) . (745) - 745 -
Forwards and spots (1,808,028} - {1,808,028) - 1,808,028 -
Total [1.908.581 - {1,900,681) - 1,508,901 =

42
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5 Financial risk management {continued)

Derivative ial i
o i ial assets and (
Financlal assets subject to enforceable master netting and simllar
30 June 2022 Related amounts not offset In the statement of
Gross amount of Net amounts financlal position
recognised financlal  of financial assets Financlal
Gross amount  llabllltles offset In the presented In the Instruments Cash
of of of h
fnanclal assets financlal positon  Minancial position collateral) recelved Net amount
Global Macro € € € € € €
Type of financial assets
Forwards and spots 335, 561 - 335 581 {335,581} =
Total 335,801 - 535 581 I135.LHI
Long-Term Equity
Type of financial assets
Forwards and spots 2725387 - 2725387 12.725.307) =
Total 2725357 - 2..?2_?.3!]7 {2.725.307) -~
Flnanclal subject ta master netting and simllar
30 June 2022 Related amounts not offset In the statement of
Gross amount of Net of financlal position
recognised financial flnanclal llabllities Financlal
Gross amount assets offset In the presented In the instruments Cash
of of h
financlal llabllities financlal position  financlal position collateral) posted Netamount
Global Macro € € €
Type of financial liabilities
Derivatives - fulures (375,137) - (375,137) . 375,137 .
Forwards and spots (361,078) - 1301.078) 335,501 25,457 =
Total 1735 215) - I?!B.E@ 335,541 400,534
Short Equity {formerly known as Long-Short Equity)
Type of financial liabilities
Farwards and spots (91.548) . (91.543) . 91,549 -
Total {81,548} = (47 545} - a1,549
Long-Term Equity
Type of financial liabilities
Derivatives - futures (415,490} . (415,490) - 415,490 -
Derivatives - futures options (49,447) ® {49,447) . 49,447 L
Forwards and spots 110,840,255) = (10,540,255) 2.735.357 7914858 -
Total 11,1 DS.WBI - (11105183 2725347 B, AT 765 E
The gross amaunts of recognized financial assets and financial liabilities and their net p d in the of financial position disclosed in the above tables have

been measured in the slatement of financial position on the following basis:

- derivative assets and liabiliies — fair value.

The tables below reconcile the ‘Net amounts of financial assels and financial liabilities p din the of financial position’, as set out above, to the line items presented
in the statement of financial position

Capital risk management

The capital of the Company’s sub-funds is rep d by the nel assets attil to ici| h The amount of net assels attributable to redeemable

participatil h s can change signil y on a monthly basis as the sub-funds are subject to munlh|y subscriptions and redemptions at the request of shareholders. The
Manager’s objective when i capltnl is to d lhe respecti b-fund's ability to continue as & going concem in order to provide returns for shareholders

and lo support the d of the il ities of the sub-funa

The Investment Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of net assels attri to red ble sharehol.

43
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8a  Cash and cash equivalents

Short Equity
(formerly
Founder known as Long Long-Term
As at 30 June 2023 The Company shareholders Global Macro Short Equity) Equity
€ € € €
Cash at bank 502,738 339,079 4,137 17,616 141,908
502,738 339,078 4,137 17816 141,908
Shart Equity
(formerly
Founder known as Long Long-Term
As at 30 June 2022 The Company shareholders Global Macro Short Equity) Equity
€ € € € €
Cash at bank 1,869,250 583,942 3,974 326,174 955,160
7,858 250 563,642 3874 3z5.170 555 160
6b  Amounts due from/to brokers
Short Equity
{formerly
known as Long
30 June 2023 The Company Global Macro Short Equity) Long-Term Equlty
€ € € €
Amounts due from brokers
Sales fransactions awaiting setlement 1,921,734 . 395,725 1,528,009
Margin accounts 27,881,084 3,845 890 20,208,975 1808308
WO swses 20,502 700 ERETITH
Amounts duc to brokers
Purchase transactions awaiting setlement 1,763,892 - 125 1,763,787
Margin accounts 3,844,007 2,008,572 TBE.ETE 1,010,456
EE07.009 20055672 Ta7.004 2774.223
Short Equity
(formerly
known as Long
30 June 2022 The Company Global Macro Short Equity) Long-Term Equlity
€ € € €
Balanees due from brokers
Salea ransactions awaiting setiement 1,662,481 B 527,729 1,134,752
Margin accounts 40,355 597 7,850,302 17,512.073 14 885 272
41.859.078 7.850.302 16.030.802 15,880,974
Balances due to brokers
Purch: awaiting 499,476 = 279 499,197
Margin accounts 6,720,668 261,872 B94. B 5343854
7. 220,085 A81.824 BES5, 110 5,643,061

Positive margin accounts represents cash deposits wilh brokers, transferred as collaleral against open derivative contracts. The Company uses brokers to transact derivative
transaclions, including those with central counterparties. The amounts due to brokers are collateralised by assels held at such brokers.

In accordance with the Company policy of trade-dale accounting for regular-way sale and purchase i p tr i awailing p
ivabl for it [ d but not yet settied as at the reporting date

7 Trade and other receivables and other assets

Trade and other il to founder sharehaold ing to €691,146 (2022: €708,699) are made up of amounts receivable from founder and preferred
shareholders amounling to €118 (2022: €117), amount i from sub-fund: ing lo €688,028 (2022: €708,582) and prepayments of €3,000 (2022: €3,000)
The amounts receivable lrom the Company's sub-funds are unsecured, interest free and are repayable within one month from the date of the statement of financial position. These
relale 1o i and performance lees payable by the sub-funds amounting to €500,026 (2022: €509,381) and other recharges made (o the sub-funds
as follows:
2023 2022
€ €
Global Macro 48,402 62,438
8hort Equity (formerly known as Long-Shorl Equity) 23,732 30,053
Leng-Term Equity 115,868 106,709
58,002 T

8 Net (loss)/income from financlal Instruments at falr value through profit or loss

The nel income/{loss) from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss includes realized and unrealized gains or fosses on the movement in the falr value of these
assets/fliabilities, interestincome and expense, dividend income and expense and foreign exchange gains and losses arising on retranslation of financial assets and Gabillties at fai
value through profit or loss
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8 Net (loss)/income from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

30 June 2023

Interest income

Dividend income

Realised fair value (loss)/gain
Unrealised fair value {loss)/gain
Other income

9 Fees and expenses

Management Fee
The Founder

receive a fee equivaleat lo a p

Short Equity

(tormerly
known as Long Long-Term
Global Macro Short Equity) Equity
€ € €
1,406,204 65,646 447,558
44,560 (120,151) 2,357,868
{1,718,380) 683,268 (2,743,775)
(465,595) (1,866,279) 22,277,667
52,507 - 29,826
[B78.704] [1.237.518) 22.369.148

ge per annum, pro-rated on a monlhly basis, of the Net Asset Value (NAV) of each Sub-Fund at the end of each

month except of the Global Macro sub-fund which MAV |5 calculated on a quarterly basis, Such fee is payable at the end of the month to which the computation refers

30 June 2023

Global Macro

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Shart Equity)
Long-Term Equity*

30 June 2022

Global Macro

8hort Equity {formerty known as Long-Short Equity)
Long-Term Equity*

“The management fee rale of 0.75% p.a. applies for Class A EUR Shares

For Class B EUR Shares, a rate of 1.5% p a_applies.

For Class C CZK, Class D EUR Shares, Class E USD Shares and Class S CHF, a fee of 1% p.a. applies
For Class | EUR Shares, a rate of 0. 5% applies.

Ferdormance Feo

fee fee fee
rate p.a. payable
Ya € €
150 567,747 143,311
1.50 165,952 42,430
0.78 1,219,228 314,285
1,052 920 500,028
150 548,174 147,832
150 160,526 37,571
075 1,169,595 314,962
1 B?H,l’_ﬁ_{! 500, 385

The Founder shareholders and PM Squared Limited (see note 13) charge each Sub-Fund (except for Long-Term Equity) a fee based on lhe performance of the Sub-Fund which is

calculated on a quarterly basis.

The per fee a

of the net profits in respect of each Series of Shares, namely the increase in the NAV per Series of Shares outstanding in respect of

each performance penod Performance fee is subject lo a high watermark and, in the case of Global Macro and Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity), to a cumulative
benchmark return of 1 year EURIBOR+400bps per annum for Global Macro and 20% per annum for Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) Share Class A EUR, Class
C USD and Class E CZK and 20% per annum for Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) Share Class B EUR, Class D USD, Class F CZK and Class BP EUR

30 June 2023
Global Macro
Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity)

30 June 2022
Global Macro
Short Equily (formerly known as Lang-Shart Equity)

Administration {ees

Apex Fund Services (Malta) Limited is the administrator for lhe Company for the year ended 30 June 2023
following fees:

Global Macro

Per fee Per fee Per fee
rate p.a. payable
% € €
20 2,983 £
20 3,544 -
8,537 -
20 947,620 -
20 10,860 8,924
58,480 B3t

For the year ending 30 June 2023, the administrator was enlitied to the

a)  7.5bps of the NAV subject to a minimum charge of €26,271 till 31 December 2022 and €28,202 from 1 January 2023 indexed at 7.35% per annum

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity)

by 7.5bps of the NAV subject to a minimum charge of €12,548 till 31 December 2022 and €13,596 from 1 January 2023 indexed at 8.35% per annum

Long-Term Equity

c) 7.5bps of the NAV subject to a minimum charge of €12,548 till 31 December 2022 and €13,596 from 1 January 2023 indexed al 8,35% per annum

Founder shareholders
dy subject to a minimum charge of €7,000 per annum
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9 Fees and expenses (continued)
Administration fees (continued)
Founder shareholders (continued)

The fellowing adminisiration fees were incurred during the year and remained outstanding at year-end

Administration fees

Administration fees - payable

2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €

Founder shareholders 18,682 14,300 5,597 15,641
Global Macro 27,236 25,883 7,050 -
Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) 13,072 12,456 3,569 3,137
Long-Term Equity 101,404 98,420 26,157 .
60,484 351,058 42373 TE7 78

During the year, a total fee amounting to €160,484 (2022: €151,059) was charged by the Administrator to the Founder Shareholders, out of which the amount of €141,802 (2022:
€136,759) was recharged lo the sub-funds. In addition, the administrator charges the Founder Shareholders, which are lhen recharged lo the sub-funds, for services which are not
specific to any given sub-fund, such as Middle Office, Tax and Central Bank reporting and Audit and Financial Stalements assistance

Professional fees

Professional fees include the following fees payable (inclusive of Value Added Tax) lo the Company's audilors and to the Company's directors for the year ended 30 June 2023:

(1) Auditars’ remunaration

Audit Fees

(I} Directors' fees

Directors’ fees

Audltors’ remuneration

2023 2022
€ €
41,100 37.000

Directors' fees - payable

2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € €
Giobal Macro 4,829 4,832 1,182 1,193
Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) 1,458 1516 354 269
Leng-Term Equity 16,713 16,652 4,234 4,287
23.001 23,000 5750 5748
Directors are also entitled to receive rei of oul-of-pocket exp properly incurred in the performance of their duties as Directors of lhe Company.
Administration fees, audil fees and directors’ fees are paid by lhe Founder shareholders on behalf of the sub-funds and to the sub-fund:
General expenses
Short Equity
{formerly
Founder known as Long Long-Term
shareholders Global Macro Short Equity} Equity
2023 2023 2023 2023
€ € € €
Custodian fees - 45,150 11,084 105,316
Operating fees 571,433 - - -
Other expenses - 209,332 11,241 272,026
Investment research fees 115,918 - - -
07 34B 253,452 3,328 377342
Short Equity
(formerly
Founder known as Long Long-Term
shareholders Global Macro Short Equity) Equity
2022 2022 2022 2022
€ € € €
Custodian fees - 44,8068 11,123 112,097
Operating fees 932,212 52,758 20,272 177,511
Invesiment research fees 26274 - - 184,000
EEEE] T S 255608,
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10  Capital and reserves

10.1 Share Capital
The authorised share capital of the Company is five hundred million (500,000,000) shares, of € 1 each which may be issued as Shares of any class representing any sub-fund

As at year end, the Company had 129,230 (2022: 130,330) issued share capital divided as follows:

a) 100,000 {2022: 100,000) Founder Shares of € 1 each;
b) 27,730 (2022: 28,830) Prefemed Shares of € 1 each,
©) 1,500 (2022: 1,500) Associale Shares of € 1 each

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Company redeemed 1,100 preferred shares ol Mr.Tomas Martinec at a redemplion value of €164,416,

Class A1 and A2 Founder Shares amounting to 100,000 (2022: 100,000) are subscribed to Mr Toma& Martinec, Mr Juraj Podracky and Lovixia Investments Limited which is an
entity owned 100% by Mr Tomas Martinec (2022: 100% by Mr Tom4s Martinec and 25% by Mr Juraj Podracky). Overall, as at 30 June 2023, 87,500 (2022: 75,000) Founder Shares
are owned by Mr Tomé§ Martinec (37,500 (2022: 37,500) A1 Shares directly and 50,000 (2022: 37,500) A2 Shares through Lovixia Investments Limited) and 12,500 (2022: 25,000)
Founder Shares are owned by Mr Juraj Podracky (12,500 (2022: 12,500) A1 Shares directly and Nil (2002: 12,500) A2 Shares through Lovixia Investments Limited).

The Founder Shares are the only voling shares and camy a right to participate pari passu in the assets of the Company on a winding up following setllement of any and all amounts
due to the Investor Shares. Any amounts declared in favour of the Founder Shareholders out of Company Profits but not distributed by way of dividend shall be accumulated within
such refevant share class and will be reflected in their value. Subjecl to the payment of the Preferred Retumn to the Prelerred Shareholders, the Founder Shareholders carry the right
to a Founders' Return as declared by the Directors of the Company.

Differenl classes of Preferred Shares have been issued which are held by preferred shareholders, As al 30 June 2023 and 2022, these are divided inlo 16,480 (2022: 17,580) Class
B Preferred Shares, 6,250 (2022: 6,250) Class C Preferred Shares and 5,000 (2022: 5,000} Class D Preferred Shares

Class B Preferred Shares are subscribed lo by Mr Toma$ Martinec, Class C Preferred Shares are subscribed to by Mr Juraj Podracky and Class D Preferred Shares are subscribed
to by Mr Ales Vavra,

The Preferred Shares do not carry voting rights but are entitled to the payment of a Preferred Return and do nal carry a right to participate in the assets of the Company (including
its sub-funds) on a winding up. Preferred Shares are offered to the Portfolioc Managers in terms of the Offering Supplement for each sub-fund. The Preferred Shares can be
redeemed at the option of the Company only and are hence classified as equity in the statement of financial position

The Preferred Retum is the entitlement of the Preferred Shareholders to the payment of a i amount dbyr to the Base Fee (being the management fee)
and lhe Performance Fee payable by the respeclive sub-fund to which the Preferred Shares relate

Associate Shares amounted to 1,500 as at 30 June 2023 (2022: 1,500). 500 Associale Shares are being subscribed to by Mr Milan Sikut, 500 Associate Shares are being
subscribed to by Mr Pavol Redler and 500 Associate Shares are being subscribed to by Mr Tomas Lukacovsky.

Associate Shares do not carry any voling rights.

The Associate Shareholders shall be entitled to receive dividends out of the Company's prefits attri to Founder shar as and when, and lo the extent declared by the

directors specifically in favour lhereof, provided that Lhe dividend enti to the fate Shares shall rank after the dividend entitlement attached to the Preferred
Shares, but prior to the dividend entitiement of the Founder Shares,

The Assaciate Shares are only transferrable with the prior approval of the Board

The Associate Shares may be redeemed at the option of the Company by providing such notice period as it may determine |n its sole discretion In the event of any such
redemption, the holder thereof shall be entitled lo the payment of the amount of capital originally paid in by the respect hareholder upon i of the
Shares. During the current year, the Associate Shares have lhus been classified as equity in the statement of financial position

The Associate Shareholders will not be entitied to participate in the assets of the Company (including its Sub-Funds}) on a winding up (except repayment of paid up capital following
setllement of any and all amounts due to the holders of Inveslor Shares and the Associate Shareholders shall rank pari passu amongsl lhemselves in respect of such righ